
Date Published:8 November 2021     

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

Friday 12 November 2021 at 10.00 am

Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2021. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests from members. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  RECRUITMENT WITHIN THE FIRE SERVICE (Pages 9 - 30)

To receive a report on recruitment issues within the Fire Service, 
particularly relating to BAME. 

Mark Preece

5  THE FINANCIAL HEALTH OF GFRS 

To receive an overview of the financial health of Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service, including any pressures. 

Please refer to the Finance section in the Performance Report. 

Mark Preece

6  GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA (Pages 31 - 42)

To consider the latest GFRS performance data, and to receive any other 
updates. 

Clive Webber



    

WORK PLANNING

7  WORK PLAN 2021/22 (Pages 43 - 44)

To consider the Committee work plan, and to suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the meeting dates for 2022 (all meetings to start at 10am):

14 January 2022
4 March 2022
27 May 2022
15 July 2022
2 September 2022
11 November 2022.

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

Membership –  Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair), Cllr Nick Housden, 
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Wendy Thomas, Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

FIRE AND RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee held on Friday 
10 September 2021 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Bernard Fisher
Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair)
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington

Cllr Wendy Thomas
Cllr Brian Tipper

Substitutes:

Apologies:

In Attendance: 

Cllr Nick Housden and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Cllr David Norman, Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking 
and Libraries
Mark Preece, Interim Chief Fire Officer, GFRS
Clive Webber, Head of Business Planning and Performance, GFRS

8. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Nick Housden and Pam Tracey MBE.

9. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2021 were agreed as a correct record.

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

11. COMMUNITY RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Mark Preece, Interim Chief Fire Officer, provided the Committee with a  
presentation on the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) draft 
Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) 2022-25.

The Committee was informed that the Fire and Rescue National Framework 
determined that a key priority for fire and rescue authorities in England was to 
develop a CRMP. A number of standards were expected of GFRS when developing 
their CRMP, including evidence-based decision making, and ensuring transparency 
in the planning process.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Members understood that work to develop the draft CRMP 2022-25 began in June 
2020, and that this included carrying out an evidence-based risk profile 
methodology for Prevention, Protection and Response activities; workshops with 
the Senior Leadership Team and Senior Managers to inform different elements of 
the CRMP; a pre-engagement consultation with the public, staff and businesses 
before the first draft; and the production of an Equality Impact Assessment. 

It was explained that the draft CRMP outlined the 8 objectives, which had been 
agreed by the GFRS Senior Leadership Team, and which would be delivered by 
GFRS across the three-year life of the plan. The draft CRMP objectives were 
detailed in the report attached to the agenda. 

One member asked a question, in terms of asset management, as to whether it was 
felt that GFRS had what it needed to deliver a professional service.

In response, the interim CFO explained that they were making a business case as 
part of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to ensure they had 
the right equipment, and that he felt they were getting into a good position with this.  

Another member asked whether GFRS had enough staff, with the right people in 
the right places, and whether staff had an input into the development of the draft 
CRMP?

In response, it was explained that Objective 4 of the draft CRMP looked to ensure 
that GFRS had the required number of resources, with the right people and 
equipment, at the right time, in the right location. Additionally, the consultation 
process for the draft CRMP fully involved staff and trade union representatives, and 
responses would be anonymous. 

It was requested that the Committee receive feedback on the public consultation, 
which would run between 1 October and 26 November 2021. 

Following a query, it was clarified that engagement with the public would likely take 
place through online events and meetings. The communication plan for the public 
consultation was detailed in the report attached to the agenda.

The Committee noted that Cabinet was recommended, at this stage, to accept the 
developed draft CRMP 2022-25 and associated documentation for submission 
through the governance process and public consultation. This was particularly 
important as the development of the draft CRMP had already been delayed by a 
year due to Covid-19.

The Committee noted that a pre-draft CRMP consultation had taken place in 
February 2021 through which 264 responses had been received. Of these 
respondents, 25 percent had been employees of GFRS, and 75 percent of all the 
respondents had indicated that they felt either fairly or very confident that GFRS 
provided an effective service overall. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

The timeline for the draft CRMP 2022-25 was outlined to the Committee, with the 
final draft proceeding to Cabinet for final sign-off and publication in April 2022. 
Progress against the CRMP objectives would then be monitored by the Portfolio 
Management Board, and through this scrutiny committee. 

Clarification was sought as to the reasoning behind the removal of data from the 
draft CRMP. In response, it was explained that a separate Risk Profile document 
would be produced that would be publically available, encompassing the data that 
informed the draft CRMP. This document would be shared with Committee 
members for their information. 

Several members advised on how the formatting and presentation of the draft 
CRMP could be improved to make it more reader-friendly. 

One member asked why the current minimum response time was higher than it had 
been previously? In response it was explained that response standards had 
changed, as had the usage of roads and vehicles over time.

Following a member query, members were advised that benchmarking of data with 
other services, particular similar services, did take place, and that this information 
would be publically available so that the people could understand how GFRS was 
performing. 

Following a further member query, consideration would be given as to detailing 
distances in the draft CRMP in both imperial and metric measurements. 

The Chair suggested that the Committee use the timeline for the delivery of the 
CRMP over its three-year life as a focus for the Committee’s work plan. 

The Committee supported the draft CRMP 2022-25 and recommended that Cabinet 
accept the draft document and recommend it for public consultation. 

12. HMICFRS UPDATE 

Mark Preece provided the Committee with a presentation on the HMICFRS 
inspection process, in addition to an update on the GFRS response to the findings 
of its 2019 inspection. 

Members were informed of the HMICFRS inspection criteria, and it was explained 
that Good is the expected graded judgement for all fire and rescue services. 
Following its full HMICFRS inspection in 2019, GFRS received two ‘causes for 
concern’ or areas where performance was deemed inadequate, and was judged as 
requiring improvement in 9 other areas. The two ‘causes for concern’ were related 
to the values of GFRS, and also its Business Fire Safety strategy. 

Details as to how GFRS had been working to improve its culture were provided. 
Strategies included developing a Cultural Action Plan; launching new Service Core 
Values through 44 staff engagement sessions; and developing a new Promotion 
and Progression Policy in consultation with staff. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Following a member query, it was clarified that temporary promotions were now 
used only where necessary, such as for maternity cover or long-term sick leave. 

Another member asked questions regarding the level of staff turnover and the 
mental health support available to staff. 

The Interim CFO explained that over the next 3 to 5 years, there would be a 
significant number of staff retiring, with 30 to 40 percent of staff in development. It 
was noted that this problem was not unique to Gloucestershire, and this year’s 
MTFS bid requested funds to provide additional training to staff in order to address 
this. 

It was also explained, with regards to the mental health and wellbeing of GFRS 
staff, that they had access to occupational health support through Gloucestershire 
County Council, and crew members who had attended a significant incident were 
attended to by officers to see how they could be supported.

One member highlighted the growing problem with tyre burning on commercial 
premises. It was noted, in response, that the Environment Agency was responsible 
for dealing with this issue. 

The Interim CFO continued with the presentation to explain the strategies that 
GFRS had introduced to improve the other ‘cause for concern’ relating to business 
fire safety. Actions included developing a new Risk Based Inspection Programme 
(RBIP) and a policy for Business Fire Safety; recruiting additional team members to 
the Fire Safety Team; employing a Fire Safety Data Coordinator; and ensuring the 
Business Fire Safety Team received regular update training to support the RBIP.

Clarification was sought regarding the public register for business fire safety. It was 
requested that a report on the Fire Cover Review be brought to the Committee, and 
it was noted that it would be useful for members to have an understanding of the 
high-risk buildings within the County. 

Further clarification was sought from members regarding the process for business 
inspection and whether businesses were obliged to send annual updates to GFRS 
regarding the business they carried out and the materials used on their premises. 

In response, members were advised that businesses should update their own risk 
assessments so that when GFRS carried out their audits, it would be up to date. It 
was understood that high risk premises would be audited on an annual or three-
yearly basis. 

There was a further member question regarding the requirement of sprinklers in 
buildings. In response, the member was advised that the Service could recommend 
this for new build planning applications, however they could not mandate this in 
England. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

The Committee noted the presentation, and understood that further updates on the 
GFRS response to the findings of its 2019 inspection would be presented at future 
meetings. 

13. GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES 

Clive Webber, Head of Business Planning and Performance, GFRS, provided the 
Committee with the latest GFRS performance data. 

In particular, members were made aware that performance within community safety 
had been impacted by the forecast number of accidental dwelling fires being higher 
than expected. However, the timeliness of responding to these fires had improved 
in Quarter 1 2021/22. It was queried whether this increase in the number of fires 
was as a result of more people working from home.

Performance relating to the rate of Safe and Well visits had continued to see small 
signs of recovery, although this still remained below target as a result of the impact 
of Covid-19 on the ability to carry out visits.  

Members were reminded of the additional roles GFRS had carried out during the 
pandemic, supporting a number of partners. 

Members noted that there had been no further update on the Home Secretary’s 
consultative white paper on the governance of Fire and Rescue Services, which 
was expected in the autumn. 

Following an update on the Portfolio Management Board, it was queried whether 
the papers for these meetings were publically available. In response it was 
determined that whilst the papers were not publically available, a one page 
summary of these meetings could be provided to Committee members . 

The Committee was informed that HMICFRS had requested 62 document areas for 
review in preparation for their inspection of GFRS the week commencing 27 
September 2021. Additionally, a self-assessment had been prepared for the 
inspection. This would be circulated with Committee members in confidence.

It was also understood that initial feedback on the inspection would be provided to 
the CFO and Cllr Dave Norman as Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking 
and Libraries, on 1 December 2021.

Following a query, it was understood that the inspection would be well scheduled 
with a timetable, with members of staff being encouraged to be open and honest 
with the inspection team about the performance of the Service.

Members also noted that the mutual aid agreement with South Western Ambulance 
was to continue until the end of March 2022; GFRS had undertaken a peer 
assessment of its Business Fire Safety arrangements through which informal 
feedback indicated that there had been improvement since the last inspection 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

although there were some areas that could still be improved on;  and that the GFRS 
revenue budget forecast indicated an overspend of £2k, excluding Covid-19 related 
expenditure.

Following a query, the Committee was advised that some in-year funding to support 
additional GFRS roles had been received. 

Following a brief discussion on the collaboration of blue light services, including the 
use of shared premises, it was suggested that the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(PCC) be invited to a future meeting of the Committee to discuss collaboration. 

14. WORK PLAN 2021/22 

The Committee agreed to add the following items to its work plan:

- A presentation from the PCC and CFO on blue light collaboration (early 
2022);

- An update on the CRMP (March 2022 meeting); and
- An update from SWASFT on blue light collaboration as a future item in the 

work plan. 

At its next meeting on 12 November 2021, the Committee would consider:

- Recruitment issues within the Fire Services, particularly relating to BAME; 
and

- An overview of the financial health of GFRS, including any pressures.  

15. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee noted the future meeting dates. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.05 pm

Page 6



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee actions – 10 September 2021

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

1 Community Risk 
Management Plan

To provide the Committee with feedback on the 
draft CRMP public consultation, which would run 
between 1 October and 26 November 2021. 

Mark Preece A summary to be provided 
following completion of the 
consultation process. 

249. Community Risk 
Management Plan

To share the risk profile document with the 
Committee. 

Clive Webber/ 
Laura Powick

Circulated to Committee 
members on 7 October 2021.

350. Community Risk 
Management Plan

To ensure the mission statement is readable on 
the CRMP document when finalising, and that the 
timelines are presented clearly.

Clive Webber The document is still with 
design but this request has 
been noted and will feature in 
the final draft after public 
consultation.

451. Community Risk 
Management Plan

To consider including both metric and imperial 
distances in the CRMP.

Clive Webber This request has also been 
noted and will feature in the 
final draft after public 
consultation.

552. HMICFRS Update To provide a report on the fire cover review once 
complete to the Committee 

Mark Preece The outcome of this work is 
several months away but a 
copy of the report will be 
circulated as soon as it has 
been completed.

653. GFRS Performance 
Data and Updates

To provide the Committee with a one page 
overview on what the Improvement Board 
considers at its meetings. 

Clive Webber The Improvement Board was 
established to oversee the 18 
audit action reports. This 
work was 95% completed in 
the Summer of 2021 with 
some remaining residual 
items being captured within 
the Portfolio Management 

P
age 7



Office. The Portfolio 
Management Office was 
established in 2020 to 
oversee all projects and 
programmes within GFRS 
and the wider Directorate and 
this is overseen by the 
Portfolio Management Board 
in much the same way as the 
now defunct Improvement 
Board previously discussed. 
In response to this question 
the Terms of Reference for 
the Portfolio Management 
Office were circulated to 
Committee members. 

754. GFRS Performance 
Data and Updates

To circulate the HMICFRS Self Assessment with 
the Committee. 

Clive Webber/ 
Laura Powick

Completed – emailed to 
members on 13 September 
2021. 

855. Work Plan To invite the Police Crime Commissioner to 
attend a future meeting to discuss blue light 
collaboration.

Laura Powick Added to the work plan. 
Email sent to PCC’s PA to 
arrange this on 21 September 
2021. 

956. Work Plan To add an item for an update on the CRMP to the 
March 2022 agenda.

Laura Powick Added to the work plan.

1057. Work Plan To include an update from SWASFT on blue light 
collaboration as a future item in the work plan.

Laura Powick Added to the work plan. 

P
age 8



1

Contents 

 

www.glosfire.gov.uk

 

 

 

 

GFRS Recruitment and Selection 
Review

Organisational Development 

& Transformation 

September 2021

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2

Contents

1. Introduction p2

2 .Positive Action p2

3. Application p2

4. Postcode Sift p3

5. Pre-Sift p3

6. Full Sift p3

7. Evaluation Days p3

8. Role Related and Fitness p5

9. Interviews p5

10. Process Evaluation p6

11. Statistics and Candidate Breakdown p8

12. General Statistics p16

13. Staffing Costs p17

14. Conclusion p18

Page 10



3

1. Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to review the most recent whole time firefighter recruitment 
process, which took place over January – May 2021. 
GFRS made a concerted effort to modernise its recruitment practices following a long period of 
‘recruitment freeze’ due to austerity. This was kick started by the introduction of a new 
recruitment strategy which highlighted 4 key objectives;

 To have a recruitment and selection process that is strengths based, taking into account 
an individual’s values and behaviours.

 Seek to attract, welcome and retain diverse individuals and continue to develop a 
workforce that represents the community we serve. 

 Review our recruitment and selection process and practices regularly and revise when 
required.

 Ensure equal treatment for all. 
The strategy was put together following need for reform in the Fire Service, The drive was clear, 
for GFRS to have a workforce whose composition reflects the community it serves. 
In 2020, GFRS had a demographic breakdown of 23.71% female staff amongst the whole time 
workforce, which was (by quite some margin,) the highest percentage in the country. 
Whilst the service has some success in raising the number of female fire fighters, it is 
recognised that the success in raising LGBT and BAME numbers has not been so successful, 
and the service need to do more to address this. 
Our recruitment philosophy is to “Recruit for values, train for skills”.

The recruitment strategy has now been superseded by the service’s overall ‘People Strategy’, 
where recruitment is driven under strategic objective 3; shape a workforce for the future

2. Positive action 
Positive action was carried out in this 2021 recruitment campaign, but was severely hindered by 
the pandemic, as a result small meet and greet information sessions were carried out.
The service has recognised the need for a post for Equality Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) which 
will include developing our Positive Action approach as a priority, as this is an ongoing activity 
not just when a recruitment process opens. In order to have a stronger focus in this area GFRS 
and GCC have now appointed Culture and Inclusion Manager who will start with the Service on 
1st October 2021.
Please note that the application ‘Go Live’ date was delayed in an attempt to increase positive 
action activities at the point in which some government restrictions were eased to allow for the 
facilitation of some positive action sessions.

3. Applications
A total of 969 applications were submitted in response to the campaign. Applications were 
submitted through the Gloucestershire County Council website and involved the candidates 
completing 4 role related questions and 2 EDI based questions alongside the collection of 
standard application data such as address and previous employment etc.

Page 11



4

The role was advertised on the NFCC and GCC web sites while supported with a Twitter 
campaign using the GFRS account.
A number of issues were recorded with the GCC online recruitment system around the closing 
date for submission. Various closing dates were advertised due to an admin error so GFRS 
used the longest date to ensure any candidate was not penalised and did not miss the closing 
date.
This error impacted on the time for the assessment team to sift a high number of applications. 

4. Postcode sift. 
The initial test was a postcode search, based upon a pre-requisite that the candidate lived within 
the boundary of Gloucestershire or a 50m radius. This was introduced and increased in line with 
positive action to offer an opportunity for a higher percentage of BAME applicants to apply.  By 
increasing to a 50m radius it enabled applicants to apply from the more urbanised areas of 
Bristol and Birmingham, populated areas with a recorded higher demographic of BAME 
residents.
Online software was used by GFRS to calculate the postcodes provided in application forms 
against those identified as acceptable. 
The rationale for the postcode restriction was based on obtaining a manageable number of 
applications for HR recourses to be able to deal with effectively in an appropriate timescale. It 
was also aimed at preventing ‘serial applicants’ who apply to multiple services at once, who 
later withdraw from the process due to being successful elsewhere, leading to potential 
ineffective use of resources. Many FRS’s adopt a similar approach.

5. Pre-Sift
The next stage was to remove those candidates that had either left questions unanswered or 
written single line responses, lacking evidence for their suitability for the role. All applications 
were marked independently by 2 individuals to ensure fairness and in moderating these, 
candidates were given an average score of the two marks.
The 2 EDI questions were marked with those scoring 4/5 progressed to the full sift stage.  This 
was due to the GFRS focus on the importance of EDI.
A total of 706 candidates were excluded at this stage, 264 applications proceeded to the full 
sifting process.

6. Full Sift
The next stage was to review all remaining applications to assess the candidate’s application 
against marking criteria which was provided to all assessors.  These highlighted key areas that 
we would expect to see from successful candidates.
A team of eight staff (trained in unconscious bias) working in pairs undertook the shortlisting 
process, assessing the applications against a set of agreed criteria, so that candidates were 
assigned a score against each question, with scores recorded in a single spreadsheet that 
would support easy collation and review of the results.
A total of 65 candidates were excluded at this stage, with 198 progressing to the evaluation 
stage.

Page 12



5

7. Evaluation Days.
198 were invited to attend the ‘evaluation days’. These evaluation days were facilitated by a 
Station Manager, using a cross sectional, representative team of GFRS staff. A total of 5 
evaluation weeks took place. The use of staff from different teams is essential and promotes 
inclusivity amongst the existing workforce.
Originally the plan was to take 200 candidates to evaluation but places 199-215 were tied on 
scoring and resourcing/time constraints meant that we were not able to include all 16 
candidates. Therefore 198 were taken through to the next stage.
The evaluation days consisted of a number activities designed to assess candidates on their 
values, attitudes and behaviours. There was a conscious decision to place the evaluation day 
before any fitness testing in the process, essentially so later in the process we are fitness 
testing only individuals who hold the right innate personal qualities, rather than fitness testing 
everybody and testing if they demonstrate the right values later on. Also, the evaluation days 
were placed first to emphasise the importance that GFRS places on a candidates values, and 
remove any potential psychological barrier that may exist within underrepresented groups from 
the  fist interaction with GFRS being a series of strength and fitness tests.
10 candidates were assessed per day for 5 weeks, this took place at Gloucester North 
Community Fire Station.
Anecdotal feedback from the candidates has been captured and logged, which appears to be 
positive and it was noted by many how different this approach was to other FRS to which they 
had applied previously.

The following activities formed the evaluation day:

Mental Agility Test 
This involved 15 minutes answering written questions with the requirement to score 25/50. This 
put the candidates under time pressure.  This test was initially designed to be pass/fail, with no 
option to re take. However, during the consultation process with stakeholders regarding the 
proposed recruitment methodology, an amendment was made based on feedback received, to 
allow a second opportunity to take the test, if appropriate.  The rational for the request to allow a 
retake of the MAT was based on the fact that if GFRS were giving candidates a second chance 
at the fitness test then it should apply to the mental agility test as well. 
The other mental test used in the process was a ‘knowledge retention’ test. Information was 
given to all candidates at the application stage in the form of a pdf document.  It contained basic 
facts about GFRS and Fire Service Equipment that candidates were required to learn and 
answer 10 questions based on the document.
The test was 15 minutes long and was not pass or fail, the test only attributed to a small 
percentage of the final score for the day.

EDI Group Discussion 
This involved a group of 5 people in a discussion which took place over the course of 20 
minutes. During this discussion 2 current members of staff joined the discussion with pre-set 
injects designed to test candidates personal beliefs and values. 

Page 13



6

Candidates were shown a short video made by the EDI Network Group to set the scenario for 
their discussion.
The candidates were each assessed by a single assessor who scored them against set criteria 
designed by the GFRS EDI Network Group.
Following each discussion the assessors and actors discussed candidate interactions and 
scored together ensuring fairness and consistency.
This was not pass/fail, but scored appropriately.  The activity was weighted higher than the team 
task activity due to our ‘Recruit for values, train for skills’ mantra.

Team Communication and Problem Solving 
This involved the 5 candidates working together to complete two 20 minute activities while being 
assessed against core values, leadership, communication and problem solving criteria.
The first was an indoor communication exercise, the second was an outdoor practical exercise 
both were designed and facilitated by L&D.
Assessors once again got together following the activity with members from L&D to discuss 
candidates performance.
This activity was not pass/fail but scored, adding to the total score for the day with the weighting 
set lower than the Group Discussion.

8. Fitness and strength testing
Following the evaluation days, 80 candidates were put through fitness testing. Which involved 
the following.

 Chester Treadmill Walk Test
 25kg Bar Lift
 FRS Equipment Carry
 Ladder Extension
 Ladder Climb
 BA Claustrophobia Test

All tests were carried out by 2 assessors with a member of L&D.  The other testers were female 
firefighters in order to give female candidates support.
The tests were split into 2 days so that candidates could recover.
The fitness tests were carried out at 4 locations; Stroud, Cirencester, Cheltenham West and 
Gloucester North Community Fire Stations.
The role related tests were only carried out at Stroud Community Fire Station, due to the use of 
a fixed ‘testing rig’.
The ladder extension test was improved from previous processes where GFRS had used power 
bags to lift which are not realistic to the operational environment.  The equipment purchased 
was an actual replica ladder that was fitted to the training tower at Stroud.  This was a fit for 
purpose ladder that reflects the actual equipment used by firefighters.
All tests except the ladder climb and BA test gave candidates a second opportunity to pass it at 
a later date with a development plan given and supported by trained staff.  The reason the 

Page 14



7

phobia tests were not retested was based on the rationale that no amount of practice in a short 
space of time will improve or change the outcome of these tests, which is based on previous 
experiences.

9. Final Interviews
Final interviews were held at GFRS HQ and consisted of one Station/Group Manager, and 
representatives from the EDI Network Group.  Diversity was visible on the panels to ensure a 
fair and welcoming environment to all of our candidates.
There were 3 panels of 2 people, scores were recorded and averaged to give a fair moderated 
score.
80 Interviews were conducted.
Scores were added to the previous scores gained for application and evaluation to give a final 
ranking.
18 candidates were offered immediate job offers subject to medical and references and 22 were 
offered a position in a succession pool.

10. Process Evaluation
A stakeholder evaluation was conducted using Microsoft Teams that included all staff that took 
part in the various elements of the process which should assist in making further improvements 
to our future recruitment practices:

Application Stage:

Issue Improvement Proposal Status

Scoring System out of 5 points 
only 3 are given for content with 
the other 2 for grammar and 
structure.

1 Point for spelling, structure 
and grammar the other 4 for 
content. This gives the 
response a higher weighting 
in line with candidates innate 
values.

Assessment criteria 
already amended and 
implemented in all future 
processes.

EDI Pre-sift question, potentially 
not conducive to minority groups.

EDI Network Group to spend 
more time discussing 
proposed questions.

Ongoing.

Difficult to identify FRS staff on 
application forms. Especially 
GFRS staff.

Include a new tick box on 
application for FRS staff, data 
can be accurately collated 
and staff communicated to.

New recruitment system 
implemented by GCC, 
unsure at this time if we 
can add the box.

Essential Criteria not easy to Add the essential criteria to New recruitment system 

Page 15



8

identify by assessors. the new online application 
system.

implemented by GCC, 
will be added for future 
campaigns.

Not enough sift days for the high 
volume of applications led to long 
days and excessive workloads for 
the assessors. Only 4 days to sift 
964 applications.

Increase sifting to 10 days 
from 4.

Implemented in all future 
processes.

Evaluation Stage:

Issue Improvement Proposal Status

Some Assessors failed to 
annotate adequate evidence to 
support the score they given a 
candidate.

Ensure future briefing to 
assessors highlights the 
importance of this when 
giving candidate feedback.

Briefing improved for 
future practices.

Failed to assess the candidates 
individually to assess personal 
attributes.

Increase activities to 4 and 
include an individual role play 
of dealing with a member of 
the public.

Include for future 
processes.

Is the Mental Agility test relevant? 
A candidate was removed from 
the process due to failing this test 
but is employed by FRS. 

Research and use alternative 
online test. Or re-design 
existing test based on further 
research into this area.

Ongoing, liaising with On 
Call Team as this is used 
more widely by them.

Role Related and Fitness Testing:

Issue Improvement Proposal Status

Opportunity for 1 
retake of physical 
tests.
Controversial topic 
with some existing 
staff.
Communication 
with existing staff  
was poor on this 
issue. Prior 
communication on 
this issue, only 
seemed to be 
effective with rep 

Further debate and discussion is required 
by SLT regarding this subject and how it is 
communicated to the workforce.
Improved communication and engagement 
is required to articulate the rationale for the 
option of a ‘re take’ for fitness tests. Such as 
the resilience provided by our annual fitness 
testing to provide ongoing fitness 
assurance. 
Those that were unsuccessful in 3 tests 
such as ladder extension, equipment carry 
and bar lift were unable to pass on the 
second attempt and were therefore 

Ongoing, SLT are 
discussing the topic in 
current round of service 
engagement sessions.

Page 16



9

bodies.
Increased 
resources to run a 
‘mop up’ test day.

removed from the process.
The majority that only had one test to re-
take passed indicating that it is possible to 
show improvement in one area.
Proposed change is that those that are 
unsuccessful in 2/3 tests will be removed 
from the process in the first instance.

Interview Stage:

Issue Improvement Proposal Status

Remove the role play question as 
it was only included due to not 
assessing the candidates 
individually at evaluation.

Include this in the evaluation 
stage.

Implemented in all future 
processes.

80 Interviews took place and may 
have been more appropriate to 
reduce the number.  Some 
candidates who were low on the 
‘aggregate scoring’ list would 
have been unlikely to have 
increased score enough to secure 
a job offer. 

Reduce interview numbers in 
future stages based on 
analysis of scores that would 
be unlikely to obtain a job 
offer.

Implemented in all future 
processes.

The knowledge of GFRS as an 
organsiation was not scored.

Ensure this is a scoring 
question in future as it 
indicated how much a 
candidate knew about the 
role they were applying for.

Implement in future 
processes.

Other Improvements Highlighted:
 Web Site improvement with more details and videos on testing.
 Increase ‘Have a go Days’ (Unable to in this process due to C-19).
 Increased awareness/support for neurodiversity.

11. Statistics and Candidate Breakdown at relative stages:

Page 17



10

Page 18



11

Page 19



12

Page 20



13

Page 21



14

Page 22



15

Page 23



16

Page 24



17

Page 25



18

12.General Statistics as of 12/08/21:

Breakdown of those who withdrew prior to evaluation:
 9 males
 2 females

Reasons varied:
 Other FRS job offer 1
 Other employment offer 2
 Unwell 1
 Personal circumstances 3
 Long commute 2
 Could not make evaluation dates despite several alternatives offered 2

Breakdown of those who withdrew before Fitness/Role Related Tests
 2 males
 2 females

Reasons varied:
 Other FRS job offer 1
 Other employment offer 1
 Concerned about fitness 2

Page 26



19

Breakdown of those who were successful and withdrew post offer
 2 males
 1 females

Reasons varied:
 Other FRS job offer 1 (Prior to start of course
 Personal reasons 1 (After day 1 of course starting)
 Did not feel the role was right for them. (mid course)

Testing ‘retake’ statistics:

13.Staffing Costs
Cost associated with using members of staff form various departments obtained via the 
agreement of the Programme Management Office: 

These are in addition to the general fixed costs of the Recruitment Team.

Page 27



20

14. Conclusion
When evaluating the statistics from the recruitment process in relation to our aim of improving 
diversity and inclusion (by not disadvantaging minority underrepresented groups) the data 
shows the following:

Stage % Females % LGBT+ % mixed 
race/minority 
ethnic

% with a 
disability

Total Applications 14% 9% 6% 2%

Shortlisted for 
Evaluation

30% 15% 5% 3%

Successful at 
Interview 
(secured job offer 
out of 40)

38% 20% 15% 13%

There is still more to do in terms of attracting underrepresented groups to apply through taking 
positive action, which we hope to improve this with the introduction of a Culture and Inclusion 
Officer and better integration with the EDI Network Group.
However, these results do provide us with some evidence that our approach to the process is 
inclusive and that underrepresented groups are not being disadvantaged by our process.
In conclusion, it would seem GFRS have made some further improvements to its recruitment 
methodology from previous campaigns, which can be demonstrated by the delivery of a diverse 
pool of 40 candidates who have all evidenced the correct values, attitudes, behaviours, fitness 
and strengths standards.  
Clearly, there are still improvements to be made in regards to attracting BAME candidates, 
(Which should be addressed via the appointment of a dedicated Inclusion Officer.) The 
communication and engagement with the exiting workforce must also be improved in relation to 
allowing a re-take of fitness and strength testing, should this be used in subsequent processes.  
Visits conducted by SLT after the recruitment process highlighted a lack of understanding by 
some staff as to the rationale as to why re takes are afforded to candidates. It is acknowledged 
that the prior communications regarding recruitment failed to provide this information to existing 
staff, and often led to incorrect information circulating – which could have been easily avoided 
though improved early communication. 
Lessons learnt from this process have already assisted in improving other recruitment and 
progression processes within GFRS.
It is clear that any process is resource heavy and costly so needs to be discussed by SLT. 
Although the PMO afforded effective matrix management from across the organsiation to 
achieve success in this instance, it should be borne in mind that over the coming 3-5 years the 
workforce profile indicates an increase in the intensity of recruitment and promotion processes 
due to higher numbers of leavers. It may be appropriate to consider the opportunity to increase 

Page 28



21

staff resources in the dedicated recruitment team or collaborate with adjacent services to share 
resources.
The new starters obtained through this process have now passed their initial ‘acquisition of skills 
training’ and are undertaking the level 3 national operational firefighter apprenticeship for the 
first time in GFRS. A separate evaluation/lessons learned document will be put together 
regarding the apprenticeship scheme.
The evaluation and success of any process will need to be continuous as the current successful 
candidates will need to be evaluated once in the role for 12 months to confirm if they are truly 
the most suitable candidates to drive change and improve culture within GFRS. 
It is also worth noting that prior to this process beginning, GFRS engaged with the Rep Bodies 
and produced a ’recruitment methodology’ document to demonstrate openness and 
transparency in how the process would be administered. Limited amendments were made to the 
process at an early stage based on feedback received and it should not be underestimated the 
value of this prior engagement. Rep Bodies were also invited to oversee various parts of the 
recruitment process.
In order to log any future changes that are made in a process, decision logs should be used to 
capture key decisions to avoid any subsequent confusion as to how, where and when decisions 
were made and provide evidence and clear rationales.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee 

Performance (Quarter 2) 

75% (3)

50% (2)

50% (2)

50% (2)

50% (2)

25% (1)

25% (1)

25% (1)

50% (2)

25% (1)

50% (2)

25% (1)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Q4 2020/21

Q1 2021/22

Q2 2021/22

On or Ahead of Target Within Tolerance (0 - 5% Worse than Target) ≥ 5% Worse than Target

Community Safety    
Percentage of  Corporate Performance  Indicators 

On/Ahead,Within Tolerance  or Behind Target  

1. Three quarters of indicators are meeting or better than the target. Performance has been 
impacted by the number of Safe and Well visits that have been undertaken per 1,000 population.

2. Timeliness of responding to accidental dwelling fires was within tolerance of target at 9 minutes 
29 seconds in Quarter 2; this is a decline compared to last quarter (8 minutes 39 seconds). An 
analysis was completed that identified the factors that affect attendance times to incidents. 
Practice changes have been made to improve response times and a review will be carried out 
over time, to understand the impact of those changes. Such practice changes include pre-
alerting from Fire Control, additional training for staff and a greater appreciation of performance 
management. Performance is similar to the average rolling year (9 minutes 26 seconds) and is 
marginally better than our comparator group average (9 minutes 32 seconds). 

3. The number of accidental dwelling fires has followed a reducing trend, with an average of 69 
incidents per quarter in 2021/22 to date compared with 76 incidents on average 3 years ago 
and 81 incidents 6 years ago. There were 63 accidental dwelling fires in Quarter 2; this is similar 
to the same time last year. Incidents both in-quarter and financial year to date were slightly lower 
than our comparator group and better than target. Work was undertaken to explore information 
relating to accidental dwelling fires over time to draw out learning points, such as age groups, 
location and time of incidents and this has been used to inform the risk profiling work for the 
County. 

4. Performance relating to the rate of Safe and Well visits (per 1,000 population) has continued to 
see small signs of recovery, up from 0.82 (523 visits) since September 2020 to 1.48 (945 visits) 
in Quarter 2 2021/22. This remains below target (2.35) and the historic comparator group 
average (1.50). The number of visits undertaken saw an 18% increase compared with Quarter 
1, resulting in the backlog of visits waiting for more than 28 days reducing from 370 to 115 visits. 
However, incoming demand is high with referrals rising from 897 in Quarter 1 to 1091 in Quarter 
2.

Note: this data includes Home Fire Safety Checks (HFSC’s). The definition for Safe and Well 
visits as defined by HMICFRS does not include HFSC’s. Data is being reviewed and will be 
reported separately from Quarter 3, along with revised targets. Of the overall number of safety 
checks and visits carried out in Quarter 2, 529 were Safe and Well Visits and 416 HFSC’s. It’s 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



anticipated that the number of Safe and Well visits will continue to improve, as crews are now 
able to carry out more visits following the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions.

5. The service continues positive work to reach the most vulnerable people in our community, with 
83% of Safe and Well visits undertaken being to people in vulnerable groups. Performance is 
significantly above target (75%) and our comparator group (74%). 

6. Throughout the pandemic, GFRS has been undertaking additional work to assist partners and 
protect those who are most vulnerable.  This work is now easing and only a few activities remain; 
these include supporting the Ambulance service, swab tests and track and trace visits.

7. The response to and recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic is being well managed and 
resources are in place. The Civil protection team are adequately staffed 365 days a year, each 
directorate has an executive response in place and LRF training is ongoing and attended by all 
directorates. Therefore, risk of failure of the Council or a key partner to respond to a major 
incident that results in community disruption and failure to return to normal within required 
timescales remains rated as Moderate but the risk score has reduced from 12 to 9.

8. The risk relating to insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely impacting on pace 
and sustainability of improvement and contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or 
capability to deliver emergency services to the community remained rated as Moderate in 
Quarter 2, however, the risk score increased from 8 to 12. There has been a recruitment and 
selection process carried out to backfill substantive posts. In-year and MTFS bids are 
progressing to cover additional resources as well as funding for development and training. 
Nevertheless, even with these measures in place, the funding has not yet been secured and it 
is still recognised that there are many work pressures on staff.

9. Since leaving the EU there has been a slowly improving picture. However, there is recognition 
that over recent months the EU exit has contributed to gaps in recruitment in some key business 
areas. Therefore the risk of uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU with the possible 
impact on funding and policy change affecting Gloucestershire County Council and Local 
Government in general increased from Low (6) to Moderate (9) in Quarter 2.

10. A measure relating to inspections of commercial premises is currently under development. 

Finance (As at the end of September)

Revenue

The Service revenue budget totals £17.7m. The forecast shows an overspend of £89k with COVID-
19 related issues totalling £89k. The position excluding COVID-19, is therefore on target.

There are variances across all cost centres within GFRS which are mainly due to staff movements 
but the position evens out overall giving an on-target outturn position. However, this result includes 
full use of the £181k top-up reserve for on-call training and a £126.5k projected underspend from 
the in-year funding of £587k due to staff posts being filled later than anticipated. Should the overall 
position improve, it will be off-set by not claiming the full £181k on-call reserve.

The main pressure within the revenue budget is employee related costs. The Service has a very 
new operational workforce with 51% in development which results in an increased training burden. 
MTFS bids for base budget funding for trainer posts and courses has been submitted and has been 
recognised this year, through the provision of the in-year funding.

Capital

Page 32



The 2021/22 capital budgets for GFRS total £616k split across the following schemes:

 Breathing apparatus £70k
 Mobile data terminals £25k
 Fire appliances and equipment £29k
 Light vehicles £358k
 Mobilising system upgrade £134k

A full spend is anticipated.

Portfolio Management Board (Projects at Risk Oct 2021)

Performance Framework in Preparation for PowerBi – Risk remains to ensure that managers are 
inputting their data regularly pending implementation of SQL solution. New data analyst has started 
and will receive a GFRS laptop shortly to relieve current burden. 

Review our Safety, Health and Wellbeing functions - Health and Safety Adviser has resigned from 
the Service but recruitment has begun. Meanwhile a number of H&S activities are on hold with a 
few being addressed by a Watch Manager. H&S investigation completion rates are being monitoring 
and outstanding reports are being chased.

Specialist PPE - Risks are currently being managed by supplying used specialist PPE to staff that 
require it. Risk that GCC will not support the capital funding for the project so replacement will be 
on a smaller scale - we won't know if our bid is successful until February 2022.

Fireground Radios – Current radios are obsolete. When radios are defective they are replaced from 
the limited stock held in GFRS. Funding still needing to be approved, the current radios are no longer 
manufactured or supported by Motorola - when they become defective they are not repairable and 
are disposed of and this impacts on stock levels.  

Station gym equipment (provision and maintenance) – A risk that the project is not approved, 
therefore stations will continue to buy equipment in isolation which can lead to GFRS being liable 
for any injuries sustained while using the equipment. No decisions on the type of equipment to be 
procured or a plan for supporting staff in line with the fitness policy. No funding has been secured 
and this project is likely to be put back to 2023.

Implementation of National Operational Guidance (AFI) - Due to two watch managers leaving the 
service for promotion the team has been reduced to one Station Manager and one Watch Manager 
so we are recruiting people into the team. This has led to a reduction in workflow and will continue 
until these positions are filled and staff are embedded, this is not expected until November at the 
soonest.  

Driver training linked to new driving national standard for emergency driving and training and driver 
instructor recruitment – A risk remains with low number of training hours available due to only 2 
instructors being part time.  The candidate for the full time driving instructor post declined the job 
offer so we have gone out to advert and hope to recruit by early December. A risk exists that we 
don't recruit, but notwithstanding, we do not expect to have a fully efficient team until early March 
2022.                                                                                                                     

Safer Firefighter programme - Currently a WM and CM short in the Learning and Development Team 
requiring a prioritising of work.  Until recruitment of a Watch Manager is successful LearnPro will not 

Page 33



be updated as regularly as required. An admin officer has also been drawn away to assist with the 
ongoing HMICFRS inspection whilst also supporting ongoing absence within the admin team.

Grenfell Phase 1 Recommendations - A full forecast for the spending of the Grenfell Infrastructure 
Grant has been shared with Finance and this is now starting to be spent. National issues around 
course allocation has slowed up the ability for Service to spend the money as some courses are not 
available until 2022. A New High Rise working group has been tasked to complete the open actions.

Review fire investigation against the new ISO 17020 standard and enhance level 1 knowledge 
across all levels of operational staff - Work with South West Region is ongoing and there is a 
potential financial impact of £7,500 to £5,000 per annum being asked for. 

Control upgrade (Vision 5) – Due to a recent retirement there is a breach of our contractual 
agreement for 1st line maintenance because we do not have 24/7 on call cover. To overcome this 
GFRS are recruiting two additional ICT Technicians and averts have gone out seeking expressions 
of interest. GFRS could sign off the project but any issues with the software will be handed to Capita 
Support and may not be resolved promptly, therefore, the project will remain open until the v5.27 
release in December 21 at which point in time we will know more about the attempted recruitment. 

On Call Development - On Call Supervisory Managers do not have appropriate policies and 
guidance to follow to assist in effectively managing staff and this will be developed over the next 7 
months. Wholetime and On Call Working Time Directive guidance is required as the organisation is 
at risk. Engagement with On Call employers is required to ensure appreciation and value is 
recognised. Driver Standards extended training requirements will impact on call appliance 
availability if the issue is not addressed, a national issue.

HMICFRS (Inspection commenced on 27.09.21 for 8 weeks)

GFRS submitted around 150 document before the inspection started. The Service also returned a 
self-assessment which was the basis for the strategic brief in week 1.

Our round two inspection started 27th September and includes six weeks of inspection over an eight 
week period.

So far the inspection has covered:

Week 1 – on site

 The strategic brief with SLT
 HMI Wendy Williams interview with Dave Norman.
 Six partner agency interviews
 Control room visit & manager interview
 A review of staff hub, our web site and the information we share with the public
 Incident Command reality test – level 4 (Clive Webber)

Week 2 - virtual

 Head of ICT – Rob Lacey
 Head of fleet – John Townsend

Page 34



 Head of Performance – Clive Webber
 Head of Estates – Rob Barnes
 Chief Executive – Pete Bungard
 Protection Manager – Rich Lockyer
 Head of Finance – Maria Boon and Paul Blacker
 Prevention staff interview – Jo Glanville

Week 3 – on site
Desktop reviews.

 CRMP session 1 – planning & delivery
 CRMP session 2 – objective setting
 Protection manager and desktop review
 SSRI (risk information) manager and desktop review
 Major Incident desktop review – head of response, lead NILO, MTA lead and L&D
 Operational debrief desktop review – Ops Assurance team
 Prevention manager and desktop review of activity
 Attendance management desktop review
 Promotion process and desktop review
 Compliance (training records review)
 Diversity – equality impact statements assessments

Week 4 – virtual (w/c 25/10/21)

 EDI working group – focus group
 3x Incident Command reality tests level 3 & 2
 Health, Safety and Welfare manager

The vast majority of interviews generate further requests for additional information. This allows 
HMICFRS to triangulate the evidence being collected. BP&P bring together this information but often 
has to request other departments provide data or documentation. To give context on the impact this 
has, in the last two weeks GFRS have provided 63 returns on additional information. GFRS have 
also returned nine sets of fieldwork/data prior to this week’s desktop reviews.

HMICFRS produced a staff survey as they are aware they cannot see everyone during their 
inspection.

 The HMI staff survey opened on 14 September and closed on 8th October 2021. 
 GFRS had 190 responses – 40% of the workforce (29% in round 1) – demonstrating good 

engagement levels.
 On-call responses – 23% (10% in round 1)
 The FBU/FOA/FRSA all returned rep body specific returns.
 GFRS and GCC HR worked together to return the HR specific response.
 HMICFRS have stated our return compares well with other services to date.

Initial feedback will be given to CFO Mark Preece and Cllr Dave Norman on 1st December 2021. 
Publication of Tranche 2 FRS’s inspections will take place in Summer 2022.

HMICFRS have requested their usual data collection for this Autumn. This coincides with our 
inspection activity. Teams are aware of the data collection and that returns are required by 25th 
October when they will be checked for accuracy and approved by the CFO before final submission 
on the 12th November.

Page 35



Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) 2022 – 2025 (Consultation)

On 01 October 2021 a public survey was launched asking residents in the county to help shape the 
future of GFRS. The survey will last for 8 weeks, the summary of activity as of 26 October (25 days 
in) is as follows: -

There have been a total of 149 visits to the survey.
The maximum number of visitors on any one day has been 22.
So far 40 anonymous visitors have engaged with the survey.
Visits have tapered off since the launch requiring social media re-invigoration.

Page 36



Quarter 2 2021/22

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 2 2021/22.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue 3
Strategic Risk Register Summary  4 

GFRS Scrutiny Committee

1

P
age 37



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
 Risk Value Decreasing
 No Change

Measure Symbols
 Performance Better than Target
 Performance Worse than Target
 Performance significantly worse than Target
 No information
 Missing Target
 No Value

Bigger is Better  A bigger value for this measure is good 
Smaller is Better  A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best  Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 38



Public Protection

Cllr David Gray

Fire & Rescue

% of Safe and Well visits undertaken to those in high risk
groups

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 86.0% 86.4% 85.3% 83.4% 83.0% 75.0%
This is positive and shows the continued work in
reaching above target to  visiting the most vulnerable
in our community

74.0%

Number of Safe and Well visits undertaken per 1,000
population (HFSC)

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 0.82 0.91 0.93 1.25 1.48 2.35 1.50

Average Response times to dwelling fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 8.47 10.27 9.10 8.39 9.29 9.00 9.32
Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 63 62 68 75 63 65 66

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 39

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond
to a major incident such as flooding that results in community
disruption and failure to return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
9

Covid is well managed and resource is in place. Civil protection team is
adequately staffed 365 days a year. Executive directorate response is in place
and LRF training is ongoing and attended by all directorates.

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
12

Civil Protection Team have requested Business impact analyses (BIAs) be
conducted before BCPs are developed / updated. Those responsible for
completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to return a finalised
BIA (the average elapsed time from a facilitated BIA session to delivery by the
plan owner of a signed off BIA is six weeks), with extra / unplanned time being
spent by the lead officer for BCM chasing up plan owners for their BIAs in that
intervening period. Work continues with each Directorate to support and facilitate
the completion of BIAs but there is concern this is taking to long.
_________________________________________

UPDATE FROM THE LEAD OFFICER FOR BCM:

The latest management information (MI) dated 22/10/2021 indicates that some
89% of services across GCC, incl. GFRS, have a business continuity plan (BCP)
in place – a small improvement over the quarter.  However, it remains the case
that the majority of plans – 77% overall – require review (i.e. they have not
been reevaluated / updated in the last six months and so do not at present fully
comply with the agreed Business Continuity Policy).  There has been a further
improvement – from 11% down to 9% – in services not able to evidence a BCP
(which are therefore considered as not having a BCP in place).  The preceding
figures support the risk rating for this quarter.

Business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be conducted before BCPs are
developed / updated and BIA sessions continue to be rolled out to plan owners. 
As reported in the previous quarter, it continues to be the case that those
responsible for completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to
return a finalised BIA (six weeks elapsed time against the expected two week
timescale).  The development of BCPs in the required format is also taking longer
than expected with some plan owners taking a further six weeks (rather than the
expected four week timescale) to complete the work.  The corporate BCM
Assurance Board is monitoring progress and has approved a paper to CLT (due
to be presented 09/11/2021) outlining that the delivery of the full BCM project is
likely to take an extra threesix months if work continues at the current pace. 
CLT will be asked to either ensure greater priority is given to the BCM work or
accept that, given other demands across the council, completion of the work will
be delayed.  The project overrun will not foreseeably worsen risk impact.

Notwithstanding the above, as the project progresses, more BIAs and BCPs will
be updated across the organisation and processes will be implemented to ensure
that plans are rehearsed and tested, resulting in greater confidence in the
robustness of each service's BCM arrangements and a consequent overall
reduction in risk impact.  However, business continuity management is not a
"preventative" discipline and does not aim to reduce the likelihood of
disruption.  It should also be noted that GCC Corporate Leadership Team has
agreed, per the council's Business Continuity Policy, that it is neither desirable
nor practicable to entirely eliminate low frequency but high impact disruption
risks at source (the appropriate response to such risks being for GCC to plan to
react effectively should the risks be realised – preparing to minimise the impact
of the incident and to promptly recover the affected activities, i.e. business
continuity planning).

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or capability
to deliver emergency services to the community

Preece,
Mark

High 20 ? Moderate 12 Moderate 8 Moderate 8 Moderate
12

There has been a recruitment and selection process carried out to backfill
substantive posts. In year and MTFS bids are progressing to cover additional
resources as well as funding for development and training. Even with these
measures in place it is still recognised that there are many work pressures on
staff and work is underway to alleviate some of these pressures.

SR13.1

Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU with the
possible impact on funding and policy change affecting
Gloucestershire County Council and Local Government in
general

Preece,
Mark

High 15 High 15 Moderate 10 Low 6 Low 6 Moderate
9

Since leaving the EU there has been a slowly improving picture. Although there
is recognition that over recent months the EU exit has contributed to gaps in
recruitment in some business areas; recent example being drivers for fuel
delivery and public reaction to perceived shortages within supermarkets.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments
4

P
age 40



Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond
to a major incident such as flooding that results in community
disruption and failure to return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
9

Covid is well managed and resource is in place. Civil protection team is
adequately staffed 365 days a year. Executive directorate response is in place
and LRF training is ongoing and attended by all directorates.

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
12

Civil Protection Team have requested Business impact analyses (BIAs) be
conducted before BCPs are developed / updated. Those responsible for
completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to return a finalised
BIA (the average elapsed time from a facilitated BIA session to delivery by the
plan owner of a signed off BIA is six weeks), with extra / unplanned time being
spent by the lead officer for BCM chasing up plan owners for their BIAs in that
intervening period. Work continues with each Directorate to support and facilitate
the completion of BIAs but there is concern this is taking to long.
_________________________________________

UPDATE FROM THE LEAD OFFICER FOR BCM:

The latest management information (MI) dated 22/10/2021 indicates that some
89% of services across GCC, incl. GFRS, have a business continuity plan (BCP)
in place – a small improvement over the quarter.  However, it remains the case
that the majority of plans – 77% overall – require review (i.e. they have not
been reevaluated / updated in the last six months and so do not at present fully
comply with the agreed Business Continuity Policy).  There has been a further
improvement – from 11% down to 9% – in services not able to evidence a BCP
(which are therefore considered as not having a BCP in place).  The preceding
figures support the risk rating for this quarter.

Business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be conducted before BCPs are
developed / updated and BIA sessions continue to be rolled out to plan owners. 
As reported in the previous quarter, it continues to be the case that those
responsible for completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to
return a finalised BIA (six weeks elapsed time against the expected two week
timescale).  The development of BCPs in the required format is also taking longer
than expected with some plan owners taking a further six weeks (rather than the
expected four week timescale) to complete the work.  The corporate BCM
Assurance Board is monitoring progress and has approved a paper to CLT (due
to be presented 09/11/2021) outlining that the delivery of the full BCM project is
likely to take an extra threesix months if work continues at the current pace. 
CLT will be asked to either ensure greater priority is given to the BCM work or
accept that, given other demands across the council, completion of the work will
be delayed.  The project overrun will not foreseeably worsen risk impact.

Notwithstanding the above, as the project progresses, more BIAs and BCPs will
be updated across the organisation and processes will be implemented to ensure
that plans are rehearsed and tested, resulting in greater confidence in the
robustness of each service's BCM arrangements and a consequent overall
reduction in risk impact.  However, business continuity management is not a
"preventative" discipline and does not aim to reduce the likelihood of
disruption.  It should also be noted that GCC Corporate Leadership Team has
agreed, per the council's Business Continuity Policy, that it is neither desirable
nor practicable to entirely eliminate low frequency but high impact disruption
risks at source (the appropriate response to such risks being for GCC to plan to
react effectively should the risks be realised – preparing to minimise the impact
of the incident and to promptly recover the affected activities, i.e. business
continuity planning).

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or capability
to deliver emergency services to the community

Preece,
Mark

High 20 ? Moderate 12 Moderate 8 Moderate 8 Moderate
12

There has been a recruitment and selection process carried out to backfill
substantive posts. In year and MTFS bids are progressing to cover additional
resources as well as funding for development and training. Even with these
measures in place it is still recognised that there are many work pressures on
staff and work is underway to alleviate some of these pressures.

SR13.1

Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU with the
possible impact on funding and policy change affecting
Gloucestershire County Council and Local Government in
general

Preece,
Mark

High 15 High 15 Moderate 10 Low 6 Low 6 Moderate
9

Since leaving the EU there has been a slowly improving picture. Although there
is recognition that over recent months the EU exit has contributed to gaps in
recruitment in some business areas; recent example being drivers for fuel
delivery and public reaction to perceived shortages within supermarkets.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

5

P
age 41

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col11')


Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond
to a major incident such as flooding that results in community
disruption and failure to return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
9

Covid is well managed and resource is in place. Civil protection team is
adequately staffed 365 days a year. Executive directorate response is in place
and LRF training is ongoing and attended by all directorates.

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
12

Civil Protection Team have requested Business impact analyses (BIAs) be
conducted before BCPs are developed / updated. Those responsible for
completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to return a finalised
BIA (the average elapsed time from a facilitated BIA session to delivery by the
plan owner of a signed off BIA is six weeks), with extra / unplanned time being
spent by the lead officer for BCM chasing up plan owners for their BIAs in that
intervening period. Work continues with each Directorate to support and facilitate
the completion of BIAs but there is concern this is taking to long.
_________________________________________

UPDATE FROM THE LEAD OFFICER FOR BCM:

The latest management information (MI) dated 22/10/2021 indicates that some
89% of services across GCC, incl. GFRS, have a business continuity plan (BCP)
in place – a small improvement over the quarter.  However, it remains the case
that the majority of plans – 77% overall – require review (i.e. they have not
been reevaluated / updated in the last six months and so do not at present fully
comply with the agreed Business Continuity Policy).  There has been a further
improvement – from 11% down to 9% – in services not able to evidence a BCP
(which are therefore considered as not having a BCP in place).  The preceding
figures support the risk rating for this quarter.

Business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be conducted before BCPs are
developed / updated and BIA sessions continue to be rolled out to plan owners. 
As reported in the previous quarter, it continues to be the case that those
responsible for completing the BIAs are taking an unexpected length of time to
return a finalised BIA (six weeks elapsed time against the expected two week
timescale).  The development of BCPs in the required format is also taking longer
than expected with some plan owners taking a further six weeks (rather than the
expected four week timescale) to complete the work.  The corporate BCM
Assurance Board is monitoring progress and has approved a paper to CLT (due
to be presented 09/11/2021) outlining that the delivery of the full BCM project is
likely to take an extra threesix months if work continues at the current pace. 
CLT will be asked to either ensure greater priority is given to the BCM work or
accept that, given other demands across the council, completion of the work will
be delayed.  The project overrun will not foreseeably worsen risk impact.

Notwithstanding the above, as the project progresses, more BIAs and BCPs will
be updated across the organisation and processes will be implemented to ensure
that plans are rehearsed and tested, resulting in greater confidence in the
robustness of each service's BCM arrangements and a consequent overall
reduction in risk impact.  However, business continuity management is not a
"preventative" discipline and does not aim to reduce the likelihood of
disruption.  It should also be noted that GCC Corporate Leadership Team has
agreed, per the council's Business Continuity Policy, that it is neither desirable
nor practicable to entirely eliminate low frequency but high impact disruption
risks at source (the appropriate response to such risks being for GCC to plan to
react effectively should the risks be realised – preparing to minimise the impact
of the incident and to promptly recover the affected activities, i.e. business
continuity planning).

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or capability
to deliver emergency services to the community

Preece,
Mark

High 20 ? Moderate 12 Moderate 8 Moderate 8 Moderate
12

There has been a recruitment and selection process carried out to backfill
substantive posts. In year and MTFS bids are progressing to cover additional
resources as well as funding for development and training. Even with these
measures in place it is still recognised that there are many work pressures on
staff and work is underway to alleviate some of these pressures.

SR13.1

Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU with the
possible impact on funding and policy change affecting
Gloucestershire County Council and Local Government in
general

Preece,
Mark

High 15 High 15 Moderate 10 Low 6 Low 6 Moderate
9

Since leaving the EU there has been a slowly improving picture. Although there
is recognition that over recent months the EU exit has contributed to gaps in
recruitment in some business areas; recent example being drivers for fuel
delivery and public reaction to perceived shortages within supermarkets.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

6

P
age 42



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2021/22

10 September 2021 12 November 2021         14 January 2022

 Community Risk Management Plan 

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 Recruitment issues within the Fire Services, 
particularly relating to BAME 

 Overview of the financial health of GFRS, 
including any pressures 

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 GFRS Budget
 PCC and Chief Fire Officer to present on 

blue light collaboration in Gloucestershire 
(also to produce a written report on their 
collaborative activities).

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

4 March 2022 27 May 2022 15 July 2022 

 Update on the CRMP

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Future Items 

1 Consultative White Paper on fire 
services reform 

Additional meeting 
to be arranged.

5 GFRS Statement of Assurance 
2020/21

January 2022? 
(tbc)

2 HMICFRS inspection feedback Additional meeting 
to be arranged – 
exempt session. 

Workshops, visits and member development sessions

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7



3 SWAFST – blue light collaboration in 
Gloucestershire

Date to be 
confirmed.

1 The Role of Elected Members in 
Emergencies – Development Session

Thurs 7 Oct 2021 
at 10am via Webex

4 Fire Cover Review/ High Risk Buildings Date to be 
confirmed.

2 GFRS Members Awareness Session Fri 19 Nov 2021, 
Skill Zone

P
age 44


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	FRSC Actions - 10 September 2021

	4 Recruitment within the Fire Service
	6 GFRS Performance Data
	GFRS Scrutiny Performance Scorecard

	7 Work Plan 2021/22

